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CHANGE U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION 

ORDER 
2150.3C 
CHG 6

National Policy Effective Date: 
    03/31/2021 

SUBJ: FAA Compliance and Enforcement Program 

1. Purpose. This change to FAA Order 2150.3C, as amended, extends a special emphasis
enforcement program applicable to passengers who assault, threaten, intimidate, or interfere with
a crewmember in the performance of a crewmember’s duties in violation of 14 C.F.R. §§ 91.11,
121.580, 125.328, or 135.120, or who engage in conduct proscribed under 49 U.S.C. § 46318.

2. Who this change affects. The change affects all agency personnel who investigate, report, or
process statutory and regulatory violations involving passengers.

3. Explanation of policy change. The change extends the special emphasis enforcement
program providing that passengers who assault, threaten, intimidate, or interfere with a
crewmember in the performance of a crewmember’s duties in violation of 14 C.F.R. §§ 91.11,
121.580, 125.328, or 135.120, or who engage in conduct proscribed under 49 U.S.C. § 46318,
will be addressed with legal enforcement action in the form of a civil penalty, and that
compliance and administrative actions will not be used to address such violations.

4. Disposition of transmittal paragraph. Retain this transmittal sheet until the directive is
cancelled by a new directive.

PAGE CHANGE CONTROL CHART 

Remove Pages Dated Insert Pages Dated 
N/A N/A Appendix B, B-4 and B-5 03/31/2021 

5. Administrative information. This Order change is distributed to divisions and branches in
Washington D.C. headquarters, regions, and centers, and to all field offices and facilities.

Steve Dickson 
Administrator
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U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION 

National Policy 

SUBJ: FAA Compliance and Enforcement Program 

ORDER 
2150.JC 

Effective Date: 
09/18/18 

Order 2 I 50.3C which supersedes Order 2 I 50.3B sets forth policies and procedures relevant to 
the Federal Aviation Administration ' s compliance and enforcement program. The order applies 
to the compliance and enforcement programs and activities of all FAA offices that have statutory 
and regulatory compliance and enforcement responsibilities. It includes policies and procedures 
the FAA has developed since the last comprehensive revision of the order in 2007. Expired and 
out-of-date policies and procedures have been removed. 

Order 2 I 50.3C incorporates Order 8000.373 (Jun. 26, 2015), which sets forth overarching 
guidance for implementing FAA Compliance Oversight. Orders 2150.3C and 8000.373, and the 
policies and procedures issued by program offices, guide agency personnel in the exercise of 
prosecutorial discretion, including the use of compliance, administrative, and legal enforcement 
action, to best ensure that regulated persons conform their conduct to statutory and regulatory 
requirements. 

In addition, Order 2150.3C provides a written statement of the Administrator' s policy guidance 
for imposing sanctions for violations of statutory and regulatory requirements, and revises 
sanction guidance to implement the objectives of FAA Compliance Oversight and conform to 
Congressional dir~ctives on sanctions for hazardous materials, laser, and some unmanned aircraft 
system violations. The order provides guidance that addresses statutory changes resulting from 
the Pilot's Bill of Rights, Public Law 112-153 . The order has been reorganized to be more useful 
for agency personnel. 

A workgroup of agency personnel with extensive FAA compliance and enforcement experience 
assisted in the drafting of this comprehensive revision. Order 2 I 50.3C is available electronically 
to agency personnel and the public. 

Daniel K. Elwell 
Acting Administrator 

Distribution: Electronically Initiated By: AGC-300 
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COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT BULLETIN NO. 2021-3 

 
SUBJECT: Extension of compliance and enforcement program involving sanctions for 
passengers who assault, threaten, intimidate, or interfere with a crewmember in the performance 
of a crewmember’s duties in violation 14 C.F.R. §§ 91.11, 121.580, 125.328, or 135.120, or who 
engage in conduct proscribed under 49 U.S.C. § 46318.  
 
DISCUSSION: On January 13, 2021, the FAA issued Compliance and Enforcement (C&E) 
Bulletin 2021-1, which announced a special emphasis enforcement program to address the 
proliferation of conduct by passengers onboard U.S.-registered aircraft in violation of 14 C.F.R. 
§§ 91.11, 121.580, 125.328, or 135.120, or proscribed under 49 U.S.C. § 46318.1 The FAA 
observed that such conduct included that stemming from the failure to wear masks in response to 
the COVID-19 pandemic-related health measures in place onboard aircraft or conduct following 
the January 6, 2021 violence at the U.S. Capitol.  
 
On January 29, 2021, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) issued an order that 
included a requirement that individuals wear a mask when traveling on conveyances, including 
aircraft, to prevent the spread of the virus that causes COVID-19. The CDC made the order 
enforceable by the Transportation Security Administration (TSA). On January 31, 2021, the TSA 
issued Security Directive (SD) 1544-21-02 and Emergency Amendment (EA) 1546-21-01. 
SD 1544-21-02 includes a requirement for individuals to wear masks while onboard a 
commercial aircraft operated by a U.S. aircraft operator. EA 1546-21-01 imposes the same 
requirement for all individuals onboard a commercial aircraft operated by a foreign air carrier.  
 
Since the issuance of C&E Bulletin 2021-1, the CDC order, and TSA SD-1544-21-02 and 
EA-1546-21-01, the FAA has continued to receive a large number of reports of passenger 
misconduct in violation of FAA regulations or proscribed under 49 U.S.C. § 46318. Accordingly, 
this bulletin extends the special emphasis enforcement program announced in C&E 
Bulletin 2021-1. This extension will remain in effect at least until TSA SD 1544-21-02 and 
EA 1546-21-01, or any extension of the passenger mask requirement in TSA SD 1544-21-02 and 
EA 1546-21-01, expire.  
 
This special emphasis enforcement program provides that civil penalty action will be initiated 
against passengers who assault, threaten, intimidate, or interfere with a crewmember in the 
performance of a crewmember’s duties in violation of FAA regulations or who engage in 
conduct proscribed under 49 U.S.C. § 46318 regardless of culpability. The civil penalties will be 
assessed in accordance with chapter 9 of this order. This special emphasis enforcement program 
does not restrict the use of other types of legal enforcement actions available to the FAA, such as 

                                                           
1 While a passenger’s failure to wear a mask onboard an aircraft is not itself a violation of FAA regulations or 
proscribed under 49 U.S.C. § 46318, conduct related to such a failure that results in a violation of FAA regulations 
or is proscribed under 49 U.S.C. § 46318 will be subject to civil penalty in accordance with this bulletin.  
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orders of compliance or cease and desist orders, nor does it limit the possibility of criminal 
sanctions, such as for violations of 49 U.S.C. § 46504.  
 
ACTION: Effective immediately, and at least as long as TSA SD 1544-21-02 and 
EA-1546-21-01 remain in effect or any extension of the passenger mask requirement in TSA 
SD 1544-21-02 and EA 1546-21-01 remains in effect, the following compliance and 
enforcement procedures are in effect for cases involving conduct in violation of 14 C.F.R. 
§§ 91.11, 121.580, 125.328, and 135.120, or conduct proscribed under 49 U.S.C. § 46318:2 
 

1. When a passenger commits any such regulatory violation,3 or when a passenger’s 
conduct is proscribed under 49 U.S.C. § 46318, FAA investigative personnel will send 
the case to the Office of the Chief Counsel’s Enforcement Division (AGC-300) for legal 
enforcement action. Compliance actions and administrative actions will not be used to 
address such conduct.  

 
2. The FAA will address any such conduct through legal enforcement action. The FAA will 

assess a civil penalty for any such conduct consistent with the guidance provided in 
chapter 9 of this order. 

                                                           
2 This special emphasis enforcement program applies to cases involving violation conduct that occurred before the 
effectiveness of TSA SD 1544-21-02 and EA 1546-21-01, and at least while SD 1544-21-02 and EA 1546-21-01, or 
any extension of the passenger mask requirement in TSA SD 1544-21-02 and EA 1546-21-01, remain in effect. 
 
3 The cited regulations also apply to interference with crewmembers committed by persons not onboard the aircraft 
(for example, by directing a laser toward the aircraft). Such violations are not covered by this special emphasis 
enforcement program. 
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